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Solicitation Information 

August 14, 2015 

Addendum #2 

RFP #7549763 

TITLE:   Statewide Facilities Assessment & Prioritization Planning Services 

 

SUBMISSION DEADLINE:  August 26, 2015 AT 2:00 PM (ET) 

ATTACHED ARE THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS: 

1.  ALL VENDOR QUESTIONS RECEIVED VIA E-MAIL AND AT THE PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE 

HELD ON AUGUST 12, 2015, WITH STATE RESPONSES. 

2.  SIGN IN SHEET FROM PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE. 

3.  SUMMARY OF PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE. 

4. REVISED COST PROPOSAL FORMAT. 

5. THE FOLLOWING LINKS ARE PROVIDED FOR YOUR REFERENCE: 

School Construction Program web links:  

www.ride.ri.gov/SchoolConstruction 

www.ride.ri.gov/GreenRibbons 

www.ride.ri.gov/HousingAid 

www.ride.ri.gov/SchoolhouseAssessment 

www.ride.ri.gov/SCR 

 

Gail Walsh 

Chief Buyer 
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QUESTIONS 

Vendor A 

1. The RFP states that our proposals shall be submitted with 1 original and 4 copies. Does the cost 

proposal then need the same 1 original and 4 copies? 

Yes.  

2. The RFP indicates that we are to provide the RIVIP and a separate technical proposal. Is it permitted 

to include the RIVIP form in the technical proposal or do you wish to have that as a separate 

document. Is so, do you require 1 original and 4 copies of that document as well? 

Yes. 

 

3. The scope of work requires website development. Does the State have a website developer they 

wish to use? Is the scope for the chosen website developer to maintain the site for a designated 

time period? 

Vendors can select website developer, but website must be compatible with RIDE's website. Cost 

proposal includes a request for an annual maintenance fee for website and  GIS maintenance. 

 

4. The facilities with the highest priority must be assessed by December 2015. Approximately how 

many of the 300+ facilities fall into this timeframe? Is the awardee to determine this requiring all 

assessments to be done by December 2015? If so, can you clarify what deliverables/extent of 

assessment are needed by this time period? 

Approximately half of the schools must be assessed by December 2015 (approximately 150 schools). 

Visit this website for further information: http://infoworks.ride.ri.gov/state/ri  

Identified schools will be provided upon award. Drafts of Tasks 1A, 1B, and 1C as outlined in the RFP 

represent the deliverable. 

 

5. The RFP indicates we will need to coordinate with District Reps. Are these representatives part of 

the Review Committee identified? Is it the intent to hold individual meetings/workshops with each 

of these districts or will they be part of the overall workshops. 

District representatives will be part of the Review Committee. However, vendors will be required to 

hold individual meetings with each LEA. 

 

6. Is it the intention to have the Review Committee make final decisions? 

The Review Committee, in consultation with the district representatives, will make recommendations 

to the Advisory Board and Council. 

 

7. The RFP indicates our proposals should be no more than 40 pages excluding exhibits. Is this single 

sided or double sided? Please indicate what qualifies as an exhibit? Firm information, RIVIP, etc.  

Proposals will be 40 numbered pages, preferable double sided (~20 sheets of paper). 

 

8. Are the Statewide Facilities Assessments and the Annual Asset Protection Plans the only data 

previously gathered by the State? 

At the moment there is a great deal of information available on the RIDE website with detailed 

district information (see Question #4).  It is the intent that the selected vendor will become familiar 

and knowledgeable of this information.  The School Building Authority will provide the selected 

vendor with facilities assessments conducted and submitted to RIDE by approximately 20 LEAs as 

part of the Necessity of School Construction process. 
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9. Is the June 2016 draft deadline dictated by the state legislature schedule? 

No. The SBA will require preliminary draft prior to June 2016 to support efforts during the legislative 

session, which starts in January 2016. 

 

10. What is the desired level of detail for the facility condition assessment – Uniformat Level 1, 2 or 3?  

The desired level of detail for the facility condition assessment is approximately Uniformat Level 2 

with enough detail to produce unit pricing for cost estimating that will reflect true cost of project 

based on a master plan. 

 

11. Is RIDE anticipating that “inspection” of various building elements and systems be limited to visual 

inspections, or are more comprehensive methodologies – such as materials testing and borings 

anticipated? 

Building system evaluations will be comprehensive assessments, as necessary to develop 

prioritization, scopes of work, and cost estimates.  Inspections and evaluations of a destructive 

nature are not part of the scope of services. 

 

12.  Will enrollment projections be obtained through the individual districts as part of their contracts 

with NESDEC? 

Enrollment projections must be procured by vendor and any associated costs must be included in the 

bid for Task 1b – Educational Program Assessment. 

 

13. For the Task 2 database and the Task 4 prioritization tool – is there a preferred software/platform 

for these items? Do they need to be accessible online? 

There is no preferred software or platform, and both tools must be accessible online and well 

integrated in to the website component for easy use by the public. 

 

14. For the soft bound copies of the report mentioned in Task 5, it is understood that the quantity is to 

be determined, but is there a ballpark-estimate? Closer to 3 copies, 30 copies, or 300 copies? 

Approximately 50 soft bound copies. 

 

15. The RFP indicates there are “300+” facilities to be assessed. There are a defined number of facilities 

or a cap that can be identified? 

School building facilities in traditional districts are listed in the 2013 Public Schoolhouse Assessment.  

A list of Charter Public Schools has been attached to this Addendum.   

 

16. Is there a budget for this phase of the project? 

This project was required by Article 9 of the FY16 Budget, which is available on the General 

Assembly’s website and State of Rhode Island’s Budget Office website.  There is no established 

budget for this phase of the project, but the School Building Authority has access to funds to support 

this work. 
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Vendor C 

1) If there are no sets of plans for any given school building, is it the expectation that the successful 

consultant will be required to create such a floor plan in order to fulfill the following scope:  "An 

itemization of spaces needed to support the educational program, complete to the degree that a 

designer may use it as the basic document from which to create the design of a school facility;" 

Yes. 

 

2) Please state explicitly for purposes of pricing, the total number of school buildings to be assessed or 

inspected and the total gross square feet of all buildings. 

See answers to Question 15 by Vendor A. 

 

 

3) With regard to the comprehensive database that will be developed, has any work already been done 

that prescribes the specifics of what is to be collected in the prioritization plan?  Is there a list that 

can be provided, if possible, of all the database fields that RIDE would like to have to be collected by 

the assessment inspections?  Is there a data structure (relationship) between fields that our 

collection must conform with? 

The contents, fields, and framework of the database will be developed collaboratively by the selected 

vendor with the SBA. As stated above, the desired level of detail for the facility condition assessment 

is approximately Uniformat Level 2. 

4) Has a budget for this project been authorized (e.g. by a vote of the legislature) and funded, and is this 

a matter of public record that can be disclosed? 

See answer to Question 16 by Vendor A. 

5) The RFP indicates that "The Facility Analysis must be conducted by licensed professionals... ", and 

follows with a long lists of 16 disciplines.  What specific licensing are you referring to and is it your 

intent that each of these 16 disciplines be involved in the inspection of every building? 

The disciplines listed represent (most of) the expertise required to provide a comprehensive 

assessment of school facilities. Licensed professionals are required to ensure that the appropriate 

level of expertise is available to create an assessment that is a high quality, verifiable, and reliable 

document. 

 

6) With regard to the website that the RFP indicates is to be created by the vendor, there is a lot of 

content prescribed to be in that website that goes beyond the data collection and analysis in the rest 

of the RFP.  Can you expound on what the duties are specifically for the vendor vs RIDE staff with 

regard to content for the website?  Also, are there documents or specifications regarding what the 

technical requirements (platform, CMS software, etc.) for RIDE's hosting environment? 

While the School Building Authority will provide some content, the SBA’s intent in procuring this 

service is that the vendor will work with RIDE to provide a fully functioning standalone website that is 

linked to RIDE’s website with content (approved by the SBA) that is based on materials provided to the 

vendor by the SBA and the content of the vendor’s assessments. The SBA will provide technical 

requirements for a hosting environment to the selected vendor.  
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7) The RFP indicates that “Approximately half of the schools must be completed by December, 2015.”  

Also that “Highest Priority Facility Assessments must be completed by December 2015”.  Is it the case 

that RIDE has specific schools in mind that must be done by December?  If so, what are they? 

No specific schools have been identified, but the SBA will work with the selected vendor to develop a 

list of the highest priority schools for prioritized assessment with a goal of completing half of the 

school assessments by December 2015. 

 

8) Are there restrictions regarding how we put together our fixed prices for each task regarding wage or 

overhead caps? 

No. 

 

Vendor D 

1. Please provide a list of all the facilities to be included in the project and provide total square 

footage, location, school district, and how many buildings make up each facility (if possible). 

See answer to Question 15 by Vendor A. 

2. For "Inspection and analysis of potential hazardous materials (asbestos, lead, pcps)" at the bottom 

of page 7, do you expect the vendor to actually test for the hazardous material, or just identify the 

possible/probable presence of suspect material through documentation and visual inspection? 

The vendor will identify possible/probable presence of hazardous material through documentation 

and visual inspection. 

 

3. Refer to second from last paragraph (in bold) on page 16.  Does the inclusion of Title 2 of the Code 

of Federal Regulations by reference mean that the vendor will be required to comply with FAR 

accounting principles outlined in FAR parts 30 and 31? Is this project federally funded?   

Not applicable. This project is not federally funded. 

 

4. Please expand upon the bulleted item “Inspection and analysis of acoustical” at the bottom of page 

7. For example, are you seeking measured acoustical data for classrooms to meet some standards 

(such as ANSI/ASA standard of 35dbA), or are you seeking an overview of perceived acoustical issues 

that should be noted for further specialized investigation?  Do you require documentation by an 

acoustics engineer? 

This assessment seeks to provide an overview of perceived acoustical issues evaluated by an 

acoustical engineer.  

 

5. Are vertical transportation systems included in the condition assessment? 

Yes. All building systems should be included in the conditions assessment as necessary to provide a 

complete and comprehensive facilities assessments. 

 

6. Do roofs and elevators have warranties or contracts for maintenance and, if so, will the vendor get 

to see these? 

Because buildings are in the care and control of the LEAs, the vendor will be required to coordinate 

with the LEA to obtain any and all documentation necessary to provide a complete and 

comprehensive facilities assessment. 
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7. Please provide the links to the GIS-driven websites mentioned in Task 3 on page 10.  

The best example of the GIS map embedded in a website is: 

MSBA - http://gis.massschoolbuildings.org/Projects_StateWideMap.aspx 

8. Please provide details on the existing “RIDE’s website interface” noted in Task 3 on page 10. Is it 

your intent that we would just be providing a link that could be posted on the website? 

While the School Building Authority will provide some content, the SBA’s intent in procuring this 

service is that the vendor will work with RIDE to provide a fully functioning standalone website that is 

linked to RIDE’s website with content (approved by the SBA) that is based on materials provided to 

the vendor by the SBA and the content of the vendor’s assessments. The SBA will provide technical 

requirements for a hosting environment to the selected vendor.  

9. Please clarify and expand upon these two related statements in terms of actual quantities of 

facilities/buildings and scope of work to be completed and the date in December:   

a. (Middle of page 12) “*Highest Priority Facility Assessments must be completed by December 

2015” 

See answer to Question 15 by Vendor A. 

 

b.  (Page 7, last sentence of paragraph titled Task 1: Conduct Facility Analysis) “Approximately half 

of the schools must be completed by December, 2015.”   

See answer to Question 15 by Vendor A. 

 

10. Several questions related to defining the role of the contractor in using Energy Star Portfolio 

Manager. 

a. Has the Energy Star Portfolio Manager account(s) already been set up and populated with utility 

data?   

The Rhode Island Office of Energy Resources (RIOER) has set up and populated the Energy Star 

Portfolio Manager accounts for many traditional school districts.  The School Building Authority 

does not currently have access to the accounts, but has access to the scoring.   

b. Will RIDE set up the accounts prior to start of work?   

The vendor will collaborate with the SBA and the RIOER to access existing accounts and set up 

accounts for any LEAs that do not have Energy Star Portfolio Manager accounts. 

c. Is the vendor expected to:  

i. Provide data to populate accounts,  

Yes – for any accounts that have not yet been set up. 

ii. Populate the accounts with two years of data,  

Yes – for any accounts that have not yet been set up. 

iii. Set-up and populate accounts, or 

Yes – for any accounts that have not yet been set up. 

iv. Set-up and populate accounts with two years of data and continue to populate and maintain 

data for a certain amount of time into the future? 

No, the vendor will not be required to maintain data beyond the assessment timeframe. 

 

11. You have provided a very long list of specialized professionals (Task 1 (A): Facility Conditions). Do 

you expect these specialties to be part of the successful team? 

Yes. 
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12. Please provide more definition on the anticipated milestone dates for the selection process. 

The selection of a vendor for this RFP will be subject to several timelines, but is anticipated to occur 

in the Fall.   

 

13. Page 5 – “The selected vendor will perform a feasibility study and create a Facility Master Plan for all 

of Rhode Island public schools (approximately 300), including traditional school districts, career and 

technical centers, and public charter schools.”   

a. Can you provide more information on the level of detail expected?  Are we planning for each 

school or each district? 

The assessment must evaluate school facilities and provide condition and cost of improvement 

information at the school level. 

14.  Page 5 – Scope of work Section b.  “Educational Program Adequacy”. Can you define this term for 

us? 

Educational Program Adequacy is defined on page 8 under Task 1(B) Educational Program 

Assessment.  

 

15. Page 6 – Scope of Work, Section c., item 4) - “…optimizing utilization…” Can you clarify the work 

required? 

This is an educational facility assessment that considers enrollments, capacity, and educational 

program to assess facility and district utilization by grade level to identify opportunities for 

consolidation.   

 

16. Page 7 – Requirements. Is the vendor expected to conduct “Educational Planning Charrettes” or 

“Educational Visioning Workshops for this study and, if so, how many and in what locations? 

Yes. Amount and locations as required to achieve the project deliverable tasks.  

 

17. Page 8 – Task 1 (B).  Can you provide an example of the format prescribed by the SBA to address the 

following item: “An itemization of spaces needed to support the educational program, complete to 

the degree that a designer may use it as the basic document from which to create the design of a 

school facility;” 

No. The SBA will work with the selected vendor to create an appropriate template for this purpose. 

 

18. Page 9 – Task 2. Will the vendor have access to state GIS data will all the listed data sets? 

The State has GIS data - available at http://www.edc.uri.edu/rigis/.  

 

19. Page 12 – Schedule. Can you provide an estimate on the number of “Highest priority” schools to be 

assessed by December? 

The goal is to complete at least half of the public school facilities in Rhode Island by December (+/- 

150).  School building facilities in traditional districts are listed in the 2013 Public Schoolhouse 

Assessment with square footage.  A list of Charter Public Schools has been attached to this 

Addendum.   
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Vendor E 

1. Task 1 Facility Analysis does not include a requirement to evaluate each school’s Code and/or

Accessibility (ADA) compliance; will this be required as part of the work scope?

Yes.

2. Task 1A: Facility Conditions requires inspection and analysis of potential hazardous materials.  Can

we assume that this information is already available from districts or is the expectation to have an

Industrial Hygienist tour each facility?

See answer to Question 2 by Vendor D.

3. Task 1 Facility Analysis does not seem to specifically require cost estimating as part of the Facility

Analysis process; will the analysis strictly be of condition or are estimated costs for repairs also

required?

Estimated costs will be a key component of the analysis and assessment.

OTHER QUESTIONS: 

1. One of the vendors asked if we could provide a site list of buildings/facilities with sf, addresses, etc.

The list of buildings is primarily that included in the 2013 Public Schoolhouse Assessment with the

addition to the list of Public Charter Schools provided with this addendum.

2. Will you be awarding to only one vendor, or will this be a multiple award?

It is anticipated that only one vendor will be awarded this contract; however, the State reserves 

the right to award to more than one vendor depending on need.  

3. If architectural or engineering firms are the primary bidders, they have to be registered with the RI

Division of Design Professionals.

Yes.

Department of Business Regulation
Division of Design Professionals
1511 Pontiac AvenueBuilding 68-2
Cranston, RI 02920

Phone: (401) 462-9530 
Fax: (401) 462-9532 
www.bdp.state.ri.us
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RFP #7549763 – Statewide Facilities Assessment & Prioritization Planning Services 

RI Department of Education – School Building Authority 

Pre-Proposal Conference: August 12, 2015 at 10:30 AM. 

School Building Authority (SBA) Representatives in attendance: 

Joseph da Silva, Ph.D., School Construction Coordinator, Architectural Design Reviewer 

Manuel Cordero, AIA, Assistant School Construction Coordinator 

Mario Carreno, School Construction Finance Specialist 

 

 

Division of Purchases Representative: 

Gail Walsh, Chief Buyer 

 

Joseph da Silva presented an overview of the project. 

There are approximately 300 school buildings that are owned by the local municipalities and are under 

the care and control of local school districts.  These buildings are not state owned, the selected vendor 

will be representing the SBA when evaluating these locally owned school facilities. 

In 2007, the RI Board of Regents (Council on Elementary and Secondary Education) adopted School 

Construction Regulations and created the School Construction Program (SCP). In 2011, the SCP started 

conducting an assessment of all public school facilities in Rhode Island and in 2013 published the Public 

Schoolhouse Assessment.  Assessment was based on reported school data - the State did not have boots 

on the ground to assess those conditions.   

A number of questions received to date, regarding this RFP are answered in the school assessment, 

which is available online. The assessment was the first attempt to evaluate conditions statewide and to 

draw attention to necessity of construction in our public schools. 

On August 11th, the Governor launched the SBA Capital fund – a significant paradigm shift in our state – 

a $20M seed.  If this assessment is successful, there could be a major bond issue approved by the voters 

to address the necessity of repairs in our schools.  This program is a priority of Governor Raimondo. 

For this assessment, we are seeking Educational Facility Planners,/facilitators who can lead, organize 

and coordinate group workshops, and who aware of the audience they are serving.  This will require 

expertise in education, school architecture, and public engagement. The selected Vendor would be 

experienced in and understand political landscapes. The more collaborative the process, the more 

successful it will be. Therefore, it is imperative that the selected vendor have a proven track record in 

facilitating collaborative projects, in order for this project to be successful. 
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The assessment is made up of multiple parts. However, one of the important work products is 

accommodating the political landscape, in a way that will allow the State to fund the necessary 

improvements long term.   

We expect that the facility assessments will be done by registered professionals, not interns or CAD 

operators. We need data that is legitimate and credible. The first step is to identify need.  The 2013 

Public Schoolhouse Assessment established need at $1.8B. We did that through a self-reporting matrix 

that used district reported data and cost levels defined by multiple sources including knowledgeable 

professionals. 

We now need independent professionals to bring their expertise and to lend that credibility to the 

estimated need. We expect that, because the buildings have systems that are governed by building 

codes which have specialized disciplines, the successful vendor will bring all of these specialized 

disciplines to assess a building with accuracy in a short period of time. We require local school districts 

to provide master plans (5-, 10-, 20-year plans).  We hope to develop a master plan in order to be 

proactive to assist our local education agencies. We are looking for a rapid mobilization of professionals 

that will go out to our public school buildings.  We are looking for a vendor that is experienced in 

collaborating with multiple stakeholders to develop strategies that will address the identified needs in a 

prioritized way. We want a bigger vision and expertise. 

Increased funding demands increased accountability to the public.  We have to expand RIDE’s existing 

website to better inform the public on the SBA program, comparably to other building authorities (i.e., 

MSBA and Ohio SBA) even within our limited budget. 

Educational demographics is part of the scope of work. We need to understand the characteristics of the 

students to be served in order to develop a master plan.  Two words to describe our path forward: 

Equity and Adequacy. 

 

We want to evaluate all of our public schools buildings. There are three types of public schools in the 

state:  

- Traditional Public Schools – which are well represented 

- Public Charter Schools – many of these facilities are not owned by municipalities and are leased.  

- State-Owned State-Operated Facilities – which are not a part of this program (RI School for the 

Deaf, Davies Career & Technical Center, Met School (3 campuses)) – These entities are not included, 

are funded through State Capital Budget because they are owned and operated by the state. 

 

Public Charter Schools and Traditional Public Schools (LEAs) are included in this RFP (approximately 

300 buildings). 
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The Request for Proposal is broken up into tasks.  All tasks in the RFP are critical to satisfy the statutory 

requirements of the recent legislative changes; however, depending on the cost proposals that are 

received, it will be determined if all or just some of the tasks will be awarded. Please provide cost saving 

/ value engineering proposal  ideas as part of your proposal.   

 

Progress reports, draft reports, and  high level reports that summarize the findings will be critical to 

communicate to various constituencies during the legislative session and in preparation to move 

forward a possible bond issue.  The General Assembly will be in session at the beginning of 2016. There 

will be many meetings with many people, and some of the questions will be:  

What is the need?, What is the prioritization to address that need?, What does the ten-year plan look 

like and what will that cost?, and, What would we like to see as a funding mechanism to address that 

need?  

 

Facilitating Workshops 

 

This will be a critical element.  It is one thing to go into a building and assess it, but it is another thing to 

engage communities in collaborative discussions about the prioritization of school facility 

improvements.  The vendor will need to engage the public in this discussion, whether it be Council of 

Elementary and Secondary Education, General Assembly, local stakeholders - the idea is that there is a 

level of engagement in the community that solidifies our goal of identifying and prioritizing school 

facility improvements toward the ultimate goal of full funding.  

 

300 buildings in less than a year is a monumental task, which may require collaboration by several firms, 

but it is the intent to award to one vendor.  

 

We received some questions on the level of documentation of the physical assessment. We want 

professionals that can provide a comprehensive assessment of the building that can translate into a 

credible cost estimate that will last the test of time. Yes, we need professional cost estimator, because 

cost projection will be one of the most important aspects of the assessment. If we develop a 

prioritization plan in which the first ten projects end up being 20% more than what was projected, then 

we have an issue with accountability. The cost estimates must address escalation, inflation, scheduling, 

and prioritization over multiple years.  We need professionals who understand that if you are renovating 

HVAC you need to carry other appurtenance cost, such as asbestos abatement if there is a report on the 

building stating that there is known asbestos.  Estimates must be credible and accurate not only this 

year, but in the future when we are executing the bonds. 

 

 

We are also seeking assistance with regulations and standards.  One big component of this is adequacy 

standards.  What are adequacy standards? Rhode Island hasn’t published adequacy standards to date. 

We will need to work collaboratively with various stakeholders to develop adequacy standards. We 

hope the selected vendor brings expertise from other projects of this magnitude and even other States. 

We will also need regulations to build on the existing regulations and better solidify the moving forward. 
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We will need professionals who will help us draft these regulations, standards and guidance - we need 

policy expertise. 

 

Manuel Cordero added that this is a watershed moment for school facilities in Rhode Island.  It is both 

an acknowledgement of what has happened and a projection forward laying the foundation for 

improvements to school facilities and for the future of what we think Rhode Island school facilities can 

and will be. This requires the measurement and evaluation that is embedded in this assessment as well 

as the accessibility of that information to the broader public and a level of accountability to us and to 

the public. 

 

Mario Carreno added that one of the key issues is that these buildings are not state-owned, which will 

require a level of coordination with district representatives.  The selected vendor will get a list of 

contacts in each district to schedule walk-throughs.  We must be mindful that school will be in session 

when the contract is issued so you may or may not be able to go through while class is in session, it may 

be after hours, that will be up to the district, and we must keep them informed of your findings. Facility 

directors are concerned that the state will come in and tell them that things must be done and there is 

limited finding for these improvements. These are our kids, but they are not our buildings. We must 

work with districts throughout the process in terms of scheduling, report findings, draft findings, to 

ensure that this is something they will embrace as well. The state is paying, but they also pay for 

projects as well. 

 

Mr. DaSilva stated that the State traditionally pays in housing aid for about 50% of all school 

construction projects. 

 

A good deal of coordination of these projects will be the responsibility of the vendor.  You are 

responsible to get the data you need. We have assembled many educational facility planning reports, all 

of different levels because they were prepared by multiple vendors in multiple years to serve multiple 

purposes.  This amounts to approximately 21 of our 36 school districts. We do not have much in the way 

of charter school facility data since many are leased. We will make those available to the selected 

vendor.  

 

Mr. DaSilva opened the meeting to questions. 
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Appendix A 

Cost Proposal Format  
 

 

 

Task 1a: ______________ 
Task 1b: ______________ 

Task 1c: ______________ 

 
Total Price for Task 1______________________________ 

 

Total Price for Task 2______________________________ 
 

Total Price for Task 3______________________________ 

 

Total Price for Task 4______________________________ 
 

Total Price for Task 5 _____________________________ 

 
 

Grand Total for all tasks listed above* ________________________________ 

 
 

*Each Task should include an allowance equal to 2% of the sum of the task prices 

listed above to assist RIDE upon requests, in the event of any delays to the schedule or 

additional scope of work not listed herein.  
 

 

 
Provide an Annual Website/GIS Maintenance/Service Fee _______________________ 

 




